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Note - Change in Name

The name of the Company was previously MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited,
which has been changed to MCB Investment Management Limited. On May 02, 2023,
the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to change the name of the Company to
MCB Investment Management Limited, pursuant to which an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
(EOGM) of the Shareholders was convened on July 7, 2023 and the Shareholders approved the
new name of the Company by a special resolution. Thereafter, the Company applied to the
Registrar of Companies, SECP, for approval of Change of Name under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017, which was granted and a titled " Certificate of Incorporation on Change of
Name'" was issued by the Additional Registrar of Companies, Company Registration Office,
SECP on August 15, 2023 and as such, the Change of Name became effective from that date.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Dear Investor,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund
accounts review for the year ended June 30, 2023.

ECONOMY AND MONEY MARKET REVIEW

The fiscal year 2023 (FY23) remained a difficult year for Pakistan as it faced multiple macroeconomic
challenges. The 2022 monsoon floods caused significant damage to infrastructure, crops, and livestock, as
well as loss of precious lives. The global commodity prices and currency devaluation ushered a wave of
inflation never seen since 1974, leading to all time high interest rates. The IMF program remained elusive
throughout the latter half of fiscal year which became extremely challenging for the government facing
both political and economic difficulties.

The county’s external position remained precarious with SBP’s foreign exchange reserves declining to
USD 4.5 billion as of 30 Jun 23 (mere import cover of 3 weeks) compared to USD 9.8 billion at the start of
the fiscal year. Albeit with some delay and reluctance, the government took several politically unpopular
steps such as raising energy tariffs, letting PKR depreciate, slapping additional taxes and raising interest
rates as per IMF’s demands. However, IMF’s Staff Level Agreement (SLA) of IMF 9th review eluded
throughout the year as the IMF and government were unable to reach a consensus. The delay in the IMF
program led to a slowdown in foreign flows from bilateral and multilateral partners leading to erosion in
reserves. As a result, the currency remained under severe pressure, with dollar appreciating by 40% in
FY23 to close at 286.0 near to its all-time high level.

The country posted a current account deficit (CAD) of USD 2.9 billion in first eleven months of the fiscal
year 2023 (11MFY23) declining by 81% YoY compared to a deficit of USD 15.2 billion in the
corresponding period last year. Narrowing trade deficit was the major contributor towards improving CAD
as a 12.2% decrease in exports coupled with a 23.9% drop in imports led to a 33.8% contraction in the trade
deficit. The government kept a lid on imports through administrative measures by imposing import quotas
on selective imports. However, these steps led to an increase in smuggling activity which diverted
remittances towards grey channels. Furthermore, the tight leash on imports caused shortages across various
industries impacted overall economic growth.

Headline inflation represented by CPI averaged 29.0% during FY23 compared to 12.1% in the
corresponding period last year. Higher food prices coupled with rising electricity, gas and petroleum prices
were the major contributors towards the jump in CPI. The inflationary pressures were broad based, which is
depicted by core inflation increasing to 21.2% compared to 12.3% at the end of last fiscal year. SBP has
increased interest rates by 1.0% to 22% in an emergent MPS in Jun-23 to push the real interest rate in
positive territory on a forward-looking basis and anchor inflation expectations.

The country’s provisional GDP growth clocked at 0.29% in FY23 with Agricultural and Services sector
increasing by 1.6% and 0.9%, respectively, while industrial sector witnessed a drop of 2.9%. Historic high
interest rates coupled with import restrictions were the major culprits behind the fall in industrial output.
On the fiscal side, FBR tax collection increased by 16.4% in FY23 to PKR 7,154 billion compared to PKR
6,149 billion in the same period last year but missed the target by PKR 486 billion.

Secondary markets yields increased in FY23 on account of monetary tightening and bout of inflationary
pressures post a massive currency devaluation. The 3,6 and 12 Month T-Bills yield increased by 767, 772
and 763 basis points (bps) respectively while 3,5 and 10 Years Bond yields rose by 602, 315 and 240bps
respectively during FY23.

EQUITY MARKET REVIEW

The KSE-100 index closed on flattish note, declining by 88 points (-0.2%) in FY23 to close at 41,543
points. The initial exuberance on the account of the resumption of the IMF program and support from
friendly countries soon washed away with catastrophic floods, which further deteriorated the already ailing
economic conditions of the country. The period under review was marked with elevated inflation, depleting
SBP Reserves, and the highest ever interest rates of 22.0%, which kept investors in a grim situation.
Moreover, continuous delay in the completion of the 9th review of the IMF Program amid political
turbulence in the country further dented investors’ sentiments. Nonetheless, by the end of the year, the GoP
reassessed its position and made necessary macro adjustments to realign itself with the IMF requirements
which restored some confidence back into investors and helped recover mid-year losses.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Major selling during the year was witnessed from Mutual Funds and Insurance companies, which off-
loaded equities worth USD 144.5 million and USD 124.3 million, respectively. This was largely absorbed
by Companies, Individuals, and Banks with net buying of USD 99.7 million, USD 83.9 million and USD
73.7 million, respectively. Foreign investors also turned net buyers with an inflow of USD 23.9 million.
During the FY23, average daily trading volumes saw a decline of 34% to 192 million shares compared to
about 291 million shares in FY22. Similarly, the average trading value during FY23 saw a drop of 54%
over the same period last year to near USD 25 million.

Pharma, Miscellaneous, Auto Assemblers, and Refinery sectors were the major contributors to the index
decline, taking away -561/-435/-310/-159 points, respectively. Pharma sector struggled with the risk of
exchange losses amid depreciating PKR against USD posing risk to near-term earnings. Automobile
Assemblers struggled due to poor volumetric sales thanks to restrictions imposed by the SBP. On the flip
side, Power sector added 554 points to the index as a result of better than expected dividends.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the period under review, the fund delivered a return of 1.43% as against its benchmark return of
3.09%. On the equities front, the overall allocation was 84.5% and 14.2% in cash at the end of the period
under review. The fund was mainly invested in Cement, Oil & Gas Exploration Companies and
Commercial Banks significantly during the period. On the fixed income side, there was exposure towards
Cash at the end of the period under review. The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2023 stood at
Rs. 1,289 million as compared to Rs. 1,689 million as at June 30, 2022 registering a decrease of 23.68%.
The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2023 was Rs. 65.3123 as compared to opening NAV of
Rs. 64.3927 per unit as at June 30, 2022 registering an increase of Rs. 0.9196 per unit.

ECONOMY & MARKET — FUTURE OUTLOOK

International Monetary Fund (IMF) and Pakistan have struck a staff-level agreement for the provision of
USD 3 billion in bailout funds under a stand-by arrangement (SBA). The program is set to span nine
months, and the IMF board approval of the SBA will unlock an immediate disbursement of USD 1.2bn,
with the remaining USD 1.8bn scheduled after reviews in Nov-23 and Feb-24.

The new program comes at a critical time when Pakistan is grappling with a severe balance of payments
crisis. The successful resumption of the IMF program will help Pakistan to unlock funding from bilateral
and multilateral sources helping in rebuilding foreign exchange reserves. Saudi Arabia and UAE have
already pledged USD 2bn and USD 1bn respectively which were contingent on the resumption of IMF
program, out of which USD 2 billion from KSA has already been received in July 2023. China is also
expected to provide USD 2.0 billion with the Chinese commercial banks providing additional USD 1.5
billion. In addition, the IMF program will also help Pakistan to access concessionary financing from World
Bank and other multilateral agencies. This has averted the risk of near term default and we expect currency
to remain stable in the near term.

We expect Average FY24 inflation to ease to 19.3% compared to 29.0% in FY23 as the base effect will
come into play. Inflation is expected to follow a downward trajectory and the buildup of forex reserves
during the period may allow a monetary easing cycle in the quarter ending Dec-23. We expect a cumulative
easing of around 6% in the next 12 months, however, its pace and timing would be determined by trend in
FX reserves.

From the capital market perspective particularly equities, the market is trading at cheap valuations. Market
cap to GDP ratio has declined to 7.5%, a discount of 62% from its historical average of 19.7%. Similarly,
Earning Yield minus Risk Free Rate is close to 6.0%, compared to the historical average of 2.7% signifying
a deep discount at which the market is trading. The resolution of challenges on external account will help to
unlock market potential. We believe a micro view of sectors and stocks will remain important and
investment selection should focus on companies which trade at a deep discount to their intrinsic value. The
market is currently trading at PER of 4.7x, while offering a dividend yield of 11.8%.

For debt holders, we expect Money Market Funds to continue to seamlessly mirror policy rates throughout
the year. We would continue to monitor the data points and capitalize on opportunities to add government
bonds in Income Funds at attractive rates to benefit from the expected monetary easing in the medium term.

MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY REVIEW

The Net Assets of the open end mutual funds industry increased by about 28.9% during FY23 to PKR
1,564 billion. Total money market funds grew by about 34.4% since June 2022. Within the money market
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sphere, conventional funds showed a growth of 6.1% to PKR 473 billion while Islamic funds increased by
90.4% to PKR 429 billion. In addition, the total fixed Income funds increased by about 23.7% since June
2022 to PKR 369 billion. Equity and related funds declined by 27% to PKR 168 billion as concern over
macroeconomic factors kept investors at bay.

In terms of the segment share, Money Market funds were the leader with a share of around 57.7%, followed
by Income funds with 23.6% and Equity and Equity related funds having a share of 10.7% as at the end of
FY23.

MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

The current interest rates would encourage higher flows in the money market funds as they are ideal for
investors with a short term horizon and low risk profile. However, external concerns have eased post
agreement with IMF and the long term investors may look to add equity exposure at these highly attractive
levels. Our operations remained seamless and given our competitive edge in digital access and online
customer experience, we are prepared to get benefits of the growing number of investors available online.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The fund is managed by MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments Limited which is the subsidiary of MCB
Bank Limited. On April 18, 2023, MCB Bank Limited (MCB) has acquired 21,664,167 (30.09%) shares
from Arif Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL) resulting an increase in shareholding from 36,956,768
(51.33%) shares to 58,620,935 (81.42%) and AHCL no longer holds any shares in MCB-AH.

Consequently, the members of the Company in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on July
07, 2023 have resolved via special resolution that the name of the Company be changed from MCB-Arif
Habib Savings and Investments Limited to MCB Investment Management Limited and a formal request for
change of name has been forwarded to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for its
approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Fund is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. The Board comprises

of eight (8) members including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and has a diverse mix of gender and
knowledge. The Board consists of 1 female and 7 male directors, categorized as follows:

e 4 Non — Executive Directors;
e 3 Independent Directors; and
e 1 Executive Director (CEO).

The details of above are as under:

Sr.

No Name Status Membership in other Board Committees
1. Mr. Haroun Rashid Non-Executive None
Director
2. Mr. Shoaib Mumtaz Non-Executive HR&R* Committee
Director
. Non-Executive Audit Committee; and
3 Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Director HR&R* Committee.
4. Mr. Manzar Mushtaq Non-Executive Audit Committee
Director
5. Syed Savaﬂ Meekal Inde?pendent Audit Committee (Chairman)
Hussain Director
6. Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Independent HR&R* Committee (Chairman).
Director
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Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Independent HR&R* Committee
Director
Mr. Muhammad Saqib Executive Director HR&R* Committee

Saleem

* HR&R stands for Human Resource and Remuneration

Management is continuing to comply with the provisions of best practices set out in the code of corporate
governance. The Fund remains committed to conduct business in line with listing regulations of Pakistan
Stock Exchange, which clearly defined the role and responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management.

The Board of Directors is pleased to report that:

a.

The financial statements, present fairly the state of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows and
changes in equity;

Proper books of accounts of the fund have been maintained;

Appropriate accounting policies as stated in the notes to the financial statements have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment;

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, provisions of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003, Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, requirements of the respective Trust Deeds
and directives issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan have been followed
in the preparation of financial statements.;

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored with ongoing efforts to improve it further;

There are no significant doubts upon the fund’s ability to continue as going concern;

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed
in the listing regulations;

The outstanding taxes, statutory charges and duties, if any, have been fully disclosed in the audited
financial statements;

The statement as to the value of investments of provident/gratuity and pension fund is not
applicable on the Fund but applies to the Management Company; hence no disclosure has been
made in the Directors’ Report.

As at June 30, 2023, the Company is in compliance with the requirements of Directors’ Training
Program, as contained in Regulation No. 20 of the Code;

The detailed pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2023 is annexed;

A formal and effective mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own
performance, members of the Board and Committees of the Board;

The details of attendance of Board of Directors meeting is disclosed in financial statements. Below
are the details of committee meetings held during the year ended June 30, 2023:
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Major selling during the year was witnessed from Mutual Funds and Insurance companies, which off-
loaded equities worth USD 144.5 million and USD 124.3 million, respectively. This was largely absorbed
by Companies, Individuals, and Banks with net buying of USD 99.7 million, USD 83.9 million and USD
73.7 million, respectively. Foreign investors also turned net buyers with an inflow of USD 23.9 million.
During the FY23, average daily trading volumes saw a decline of 34% to 192 million shares compared to
about 291 million shares in FY22. Similarly, the average trading value during FY23 saw a drop of 54%
over the same period last year to near USD 25 million.

Pharma, Miscellaneous, Auto Assemblers, and Refinery sectors were the major contributors to the index
decline, taking away -561/-435/-310/-159 points, respectively. Pharma sector struggled with the risk of
exchange losses amid depreciating PKR against USD posing risk to near-term earnings. Automobile
Assemblers struggled due to poor volumetric sales thanks to restrictions imposed by the SBP. On the flip
side, Power sector added 554 points to the index as a result of better than expected dividends.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the period under review, the fund delivered a return of 1.43% as against its benchmark return of
3.09%. On the equities front, the overall allocation was 84.5% and 14.2% in cash at the end of the period
under review. The fund was mainly invested in Cement, Oil & Gas Exploration Companies and
Commercial Banks significantly during the period. On the fixed income side, there was exposure towards
Cash at the end of the period under review. The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2023 stood at
Rs. 1,289 million as compared to Rs. 1,689 million as at June 30, 2022 registering a decrease of 23.68%.
The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2023 was Rs. 65.3123 as compared to opening NAV of
Rs. 64.3927 per unit as at June 30, 2022 registering an increase of Rs. 0.9196 per unit.

ECONOMY & MARKET — FUTURE OUTLOOK

International Monetary Fund (IMF) and Pakistan have struck a staff-level agreement for the provision of
USD 3 billion in bailout funds under a stand-by arrangement (SBA). The program is set to span nine
months, and the IMF board approval of the SBA will unlock an immediate disbursement of USD 1.2bn,
with the remaining USD 1.8bn scheduled after reviews in Nov-23 and Feb-24.

The new program comes at a critical time when Pakistan is grappling with a severe balance of payments
crisis. The successful resumption of the IMF program will help Pakistan to unlock funding from bilateral
and multilateral sources helping in rebuilding foreign exchange reserves. Saudi Arabia and UAE have
already pledged USD 2bn and USD 1bn respectively which were contingent on the resumption of IMF
program, out of which USD 2 billion from KSA has already been received in July 2023. China is also
expected to provide USD 2.0 billion with the Chinese commercial banks providing additional USD 1.5
billion. In addition, the IMF program will also help Pakistan to access concessionary financing from World
Bank and other multilateral agencies. This has averted the risk of near term default and we expect currency
to remain stable in the near term.

We expect Average FY24 inflation to ease to 19.3% compared to 29.0% in FY23 as the base effect will
come into play. Inflation is expected to follow a downward trajectory and the buildup of forex reserves
during the period may allow a monetary easing cycle in the quarter ending Dec-23. We expect a cumulative
easing of around 6% in the next 12 months, however, its pace and timing would be determined by trend in
FX reserves.

From the capital market perspective particularly equities, the market is trading at cheap valuations. Market
cap to GDP ratio has declined to 7.5%, a discount of 62% from its historical average of 19.7%. Similarly,
Earning Yield minus Risk Free Rate is close to 6.0%, compared to the historical average of 2.7% signifying
a deep discount at which the market is trading. The resolution of challenges on external account will help to
unlock market potential. We believe a micro view of sectors and stocks will remain important and
investment selection should focus on companies which trade at a deep discount to their intrinsic value. The
market is currently trading at PER of 4.7x, while offering a dividend yield of 11.8%.

For debt holders, we expect Money Market Funds to continue to seamlessly mirror policy rates throughout
the year. We would continue to monitor the data points and capitalize on opportunities to add government
bonds in Income Funds at attractive rates to benefit from the expected monetary easing in the medium term.

MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY REVIEW

The Net Assets of the open end mutual funds industry increased by about 28.9% during FY23 to PKR
1,564 billion. Total money market funds grew by about 34.4% since June 2022. Within the money market
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Fund's external auditor's M/s. A.F Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants have retired after
completion of audit for Financial Year ended June 30, 2023. The Audit Committee has recommended
appointment of M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants as external auditors of the Fund for
financial year ending June 30, 2024 and the Board has also endorsed the recommendation of the Audit
Committee. M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants has also expressed their willingness to
act as the Fund's external auditors.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board is thankful to the Fund’s valued investors, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
and the Trustees of the Fund for their continued cooperation and support. The Directors also appreciate the
efforts put in by the management team.

On behalf of Directors,

e bt — (N
Muhammad Saqib Saleem Manzar Mushtaq
Chief Executive Officer Director

July 26, 2023
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Fund Type and Category
Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (ALHAA) is an Open-End Shariah Compliant Asset Allocation Scheme.
Fund Benchmark

The benchmark for ALHAA is KMI-30 Index and Six (6) months average deposit rates of three (3) A rated
scheduled Islamic Banks or Islamic Windows of Conventional Banks as selected by MUFAP on the basis of
actual proportion held by the Scheme.

Investment Objective

The objective of the fund is to provide medium to long term capital appreciation through investing in
Shariah compliant investments in Pakistan and Internationally.

Investment Strategy

Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (ALHAA) is an open-end asset allocation fund which seeks to achieve
its objective through investing in a portfolio of Shariah compliant investments diversified across t he capital
markets of Pakistan as well as keeping a limited exposure internation ally. The Fund is managed through an
active management strategy with dynamic allocation towards different asset classes. The investment
process is driven by fundamental research. The domestic portfolio of the Fund primarily invests in
fundamentally strong Shariah compliant equities, high quality Sukuks and other Shariah compliant
instruments. For equities, fundamental outlook of sectors/companies and DCF (Discounted Cash Flow)
valuations are the primary factors in sectors’ allocation and stock selection. Ma jor portion of the Fund’s
portfolio is high quality liquid stocks.

Manager’s Review

During the period under review, the fund delivered a return of 1.43% as against its benchmark return of -
3.09%.

The overall allocation was 84.5% at the end of the period under review. The fund was mainly invested in QOil
& Gas Exploration Companies, Cement and Fertilizer during the period. Fund was invested 14.2% in cash.

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2023 stood at Rs. 1,289 million as compared to Rs. 1689 million as
at June 30, 2022 registering an decrease of 23.7%. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2023
was Rs. 65.3123 as compared to opening NAV of Rs. 64.3927 per unit as at June 30, 2022 registering an
increase of Rs. 0.9196 per unit.
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2022 (%age of Total Assets)

Asset Allocation (%age of Total Assets) Jun-23
Cash 14.2%
Others including receivables 1.3%
Stocks / Equities 84.5%

Asset Allocation as on June 30, 2023 (% of total assets)

Other Assets
Cash 1.3% Cement
14.2% _ — 23.1% Oil & Gas
' Exploration
Companies
Other Sectos 141%
22.4%
Fertilizer
Textile Composite Commercial 10.5%
6.5% Banks
7.9%

Jawad Naeem
Fund Manager
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAXISTAN LIMITED

Hapad Ciflcn:

LI Howse, 558, Bock &

SMLCHS,, Mam Shabre-e-Faisal
Rarschi - 74400, Pakiinm

Ted 1 482-27} 109-177-500

Faa: (92-21) BA26021 - 23

LIRL: v, D pupl T E 0T

Bl Enfosscd opal oo

— L1

TRUSTEE REFORT TO THE UNIT HOLDE RS
ALHAMEA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLCCATION FUND

Report of the Trustee parsuant (o Regalation 41(h) and classe § of Schedule Y of
the Non-Banking Finance Companbes and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Cemiral Deposdbory Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of Alhamra
[sbarmie Asset Alloeation Fund (the Fund) are of the opmion that MOBR [nvestment
LA U el Limied (Fovrmerly MOH-Ar] Habab Savirgs angd [nveaments Lissted )
bomng the Manngement Compuiy of the Fond has i all matersl respects munsged the

-

Punel durmmg the vear ended Jume 30, 2023 m sceonfance with the provisions of |

fisllswving

{1} [t abions dngoecd o0 the mvesiment powers of the Monagement Company

under this constitutive documents of the Funsd

111) The pricing, ssaance and redemption of units are camied out in ocoordance with
ihe regquirements of the constitutive docomenits of the Fund;
1

] It EETRENSES PRl BT

[} e mannpement foe, foe pavahle fo Uodmmissusn

{he Fumd during the period are in sceordance with the opplicable regulatory
3 ']
ATAIMCWHITES [N
. - : ; &
fivh The Mon-Bomking Finanoe Compandes { Establishment and Regulations) Riles,

MY dhe Nion F|_'||'|L||=:_' Finanee Co TRITEES drHd Motrhicd Emdilae |'|| lal ¥ins

08 and the constitutmve documient=: of the Fun

AN/

Hodivtdin Akbhor

Chiel Executive Cifieer

Central Deposhary Lompany ol Pakistan Limied

] JTIeA|
[}

Karacht, Seplember 25, 20028




REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Karachi: September 16, 2023

REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Alhamduliliah, We the Shariah Advisory Board of the Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (the Fund), are
izsuing this report in accordance with the Offering document of the Fund. The scope of the report is o
express an oplnion on the Shariah compliance of the Fund's activities,

It Is the responsibllity of M/s MCB Investment Management Limited [Formerly: MCB Arif Habib Savings and
Investments limited), the management company of the fund, to establish and maintain a system of internal
controls to ensure compliance with Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to express an opinion, based on
our review of the representation made by the management, to the extent where such compliance can be
objectively verified

A review is limited primarily to inguire to the Management Company's personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the management company to comply with prescribed criteria. In the light of the
above, we hereby certify that:

= We have reviewed and approved the modes of investment of ALHAA In the light of the Shariah
puidelines.

= Al the provisions of the scheme and investments made on account of ALHAA by Management
Company are Shariah Compliant and in accordance with the crileria established,

*  On the basis of information provided by the Management Company, all the operations of ALHAA
for the year ended June 30, 2023 have been in compliance with Shariah principles.

During the vear an amount of Rupees 317001520 was transferred to charity account The total amount of
charity payable as at 30 June 2023 amounts to Rs. 3, 17001520

May Allah bless us with Tawfeeq to accomplish these cherished tasks, make us successful in this world and in
the hereafter, and forgive our mistakes,

\

C
. i I"II'I
1_'-'
%/ Gl

D Muhammad Zubair Usmani Dr Ejar Ahmed Samadani
(Shariah Advisor) {Shariah Advisor)

For and on behalf of Shariah Advisory Boand
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

i

pwc AF FERGUSON &CO.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
T the Unit holders of Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund
Report on the Audit of the Financial Siatements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Alhamra Islamic Asset Alloeation Fund (the Fund), which
compriee the statement of aisets and labilities as at June 30, 2oz, and the income statement, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of movement in unit bolders” fund and cash fow statement for the
year then ended, and notes to the financinl statements, including 8 summary of significant accounting
policies.

In gur opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the: Fund as at June 30, 2023, and of its financizl performance and its cash flows for the vear then ended in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our roport. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code af Ethies for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan {the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code, We believe that the andit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. Thess matters were addressed in the context of dur
audit of the financial statements as a whaole, and in forming our epinion thereon, and we do not provide a
sopirate opinion on these matters,

Following is the kev audit matter;

5.MNo. Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our sudit

| Met Asset Value (NAYV)
{Refor notes § and & to the annexed financial
stalemeiits)

Balances with banks and Investrents constitute Our auwdit procedures amongst others inclogbed the Tallwing
the most significant components of the NAV. & Olbtained independent confirmations for verifving the

Ralances with banks of the Fand as ot June 3o mddatenee of M imvsstrmant 1 y
3 trd B + -y partfolio and balances with
~mimalin s, it i87.605 million and banks as at June 30, 2033 and raced them 1o the books
Investments amounted to Bs 1,113.544 million. wnid records of the Fund. Whors ssch confirmations were

The existence of balances with bonks and the not available, alternate pudit procediures were performed;

existence and proper valuation of Investmenis Re-performed i

i s valuation to assess that investments are
for the determination of NAV of the Fund as ai carried ns per the valuation methodology specified in tle
JLe 30, JORY Wikt m."'!"l‘k'“"ll a high risk area  ocqumting palicies; and
and therefore we conside this e 2 oy sudit * Obtained bank reconcilintion statements and tested

malter. :
reconciling items on & sample basls.

Ay &

A F. !-'EHELT._&'I??"F& O, Chartered Accounianis, a member [frm of the Punl nefwork
a’lmn.- Life Buildimg No, 1-C, LI Churndrigar Road, PO, Bax 5706, EKorochi-mgooo, Pakiston
Tel! 402 (21) 32420682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/ 39427098/ 32404740, =it e com, k>

= FARACH| « LAMORE « IELAMABAD
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pwce AFFERGUSON&CO.

Other Information

Management s responsibls for the other information, The ather information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
therson.

Our opinkon on the financlal statements does not eover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclugion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to resd the other information
and, in doing 50, consider whether the other information s materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the andit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated., If, based
on the work we have performed, we conelude that there is 8 material misstatement of this other information,
wie are required to report that foct, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Management Company for
the Financial Statements

Management s responsible for the preparstion and fair presenwation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and repocting standards as appheable in Pakistan, and for such internal eontral
a8 management determines is necessary (o enable the preparation of finnncial statoments that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management 8 responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
eontinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicabls, matters related to going concern and using the going
eoncern basis of accounting unless management sither intends to liguidate the Fund or to cease operalions,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Board of directors of the management company is responsible for overseeing the Fund's finaneial reporting
process,

Aunditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finanecial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finaneial statements a8 a whale are
free from material misstatement, whether doe to froud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of azsuranee, but is not a guarantes that an audit
conducted in accordanee with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will slways detect o materiol misstatement
when it exists, Misstatements can arise from frand or ermor and are eonsidered materal if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of theae financial statements.

&a part of an audit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the sudit, We aleo:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frond
or eérror, design and perform audit procediures respopsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstutement resulting from fraod s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal contral,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the droumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffectivencss of the Fund's internal contral,

*  Evalpate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

L.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

i 3
pwc AF FERGUSON&CO.

»  Conclude on the appropristensss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
hased on the awdit evidence obtalned, whether o material uncertainty exists related to events o
conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. [ we
conclude that a materal uncertainty exists, we are required to drow attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclogires in the Auancial statements or, if such disclosures are insdequate, to modify our
apinion, Cur conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may eanse the Fund to cease to continue as a going concetn.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure amd content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with board of directors of the management company regarding, nmong other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inchading any significant defidencies
im intemal control that we identily during oor andit,

We also provide board of directors of the management company with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethieal requirements regarding independence, and to communieate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, reluted safegiards.

From the matters communicated with board of directors of the management company, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current perdod and are
therefore the key andit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reagonably be expected to outweligh the public interest benefite of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquiremenis
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion the financial statements hove been prepared o oall
material respects in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and

Notified Entities Regulations, 2oo8.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report s Junaid Mesia.

P} wees Bl
AL F. Ferguson & Co,

Chartered Accouniants

Iited: September 22, 2023
Karachi

UDIN: AR20231061 1dyc3 Ehlmj
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

Note June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
------ (Rupees in '000) ------
ASSETS
Balances with banks 5 187,605 324,500
Investments 6 1,113,544 1,370,513
Dividend, mark-up and other receivables 7 3,028 4,631
Advances, prepayments and deposits 8 3,906 3,905
Receivable against sale of investments 10,168 21,945
Total assets 1,318,251 1,725,494
LIABILITIES
Payable to the MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company 9 4,163 6,073
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 10 213 253
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 302 429
Payable against purchase of investments 12,903 17,522
Accrued and other liabilities 12 11,718 12,146
Total liabilities 29,299 36,423
NET ASSETS 1,288,952 1,689,071
Unit holders’ fund (as per statement attached) 1,288,952 1,689,071
Contingencies and commitments 13
----- (Number of units) -----
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 19,735,214 26,230,784
---------- (Rupees) -=-=====--
NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 4.7 65.3123 64.3927

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)

-

ol o M

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

INCOME
Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net
Dividend income
Profit on bank deposits
Unrealised diminution on remeasurement of investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - net
Total income / loss

EXPENSES
Remuneration of MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments
Limited - Management Company
Sindh sales tax on remuneration of the Management Company
Allocated expenses
Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Sindh sales tax on remuneration of the Trustee
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Auditors' remuneration
Brokerage, settlement and bank charges
Fees and subscription
Legal and professional charges
Shariah advisory fee
Printing and related costs
Donation / charity
Total expenses

Net income / (loss) from operating activities
Reversal of provision for Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund (SWWF)

Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation
Taxation

Net income / (loss) for the year after taxation
Earnings per unit
Allocation of net income:

Net income after taxation
Income already paid on units redeemed

Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)

-

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Note

6.1.1

9.1
9.2
9.3
10.1
10.2
11
14

15

4.13

For the year ended

June 30,
2023

June 30,
2022
(Rupees in '000) ------

9,495 (227,460)
87,374 90,966
39,331 32,926

(34,475) (203,164)
101,725 (306,732)
49,896 70,762

6,486 9,199

1,512 2,144

2,512 3,144

325 409
302 429
877 501
6,275 10,049
28 27
174 150
710 720
40 a1
3,170 2,940
(72,307) (100,515)
29,418 (407,247)
- 18,922
29,418 (388,325)
29,418 (388,325)
29,418 -
(734) -
28,684 -
28,684 -
28,684 -

Heasp okl

Director
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
------ (Rupees in '000) ------

Net income / (loss) for the year after taxation 29,418 (388,325)

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 29,418 (388,325)

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)

-

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Net assets at beginning of the year

Issuance of 6,611,506 (2022: 8,532,338) units
- Capital value (at net assets value
per unit at the beginning of the year)
- Element of loss

Redemption of 13,107,076 (2022: 12,319,487) units
- Capital value (at net assets value
per unit at the beginning of the year)
- Element of loss / (income)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Net assets at the end of the year

(Accumulated loss) / undistributed income
brought forward comprising of:
- Realised
- Unrealised

Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

Net loss for the year after taxation
Accumulated loss carried forward

Accumulated loss
carried forward comprising of:
- Realised
- Unrealised

Net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year

Net asset value per unit at the end of the year

June 30, 2023

June 30, 2022

(Accumulated

. Accumulated . loss) /
Capital value loss Total Capital value undistributed Total
income
(Rupees in '000)

1,919,624 (230,553) 1,689,071 2,177,116 157,772 2,334,888
425,733 - 425,733 663,672 - 663,672
(3,818) - (3,818) (27,098) - (27,098)
421,915 - 421,915 636,574 - 636,574
844,001 - 844,001 958,248 - 958,248
8,186 (734) 7,452 (64,182) - (64,182)
852,187 (734) 851,452 894,066 - 894,066

- 29,418 29,418 - (388,325)  (388,325)

1,489,352 (200,401) 1,288,952 1,919,624 (230,553) 1,689,071

(27,389) 14,771
(203,164) 143,001
(230,553) 157,772
28,684 -
28,684 -
- (388,325)
(201,869) (230,553)
(167,394) (27,389)
(34,475) (203,164)
(201,869) (230,553)
(Rupees) (Rupees)
64.3927 77.7831
65.3123 64.3927

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer

-
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Chief Financial Officer

Heasp okl

Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:
Dividend income
Reversal of provision for Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund (SWWF)
Unrealised diminution on remeasurement of investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - net

Decrease in assets

Investments - net

Dividend, mark-up and other receivables
Advances, prepayments and deposits
Receivable against sale of investments

(Decrease) / increase in liabilities

Payable to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Payable against purchase of investments

Accrued and other liabilities

Dividend received
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issuance of units
Payments on redemption of units

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

(the Management Company)

-

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

For the year ended

June 30,
2023

June 30,
2022

------ (Rupees in '000) ------

29,418 (388,325)
(87,374) (90,966)
- (18,922)
34,475 203,164
(23,481) (295,049)
222,494 428,624
1,603 2,771)
(1) -
11,777 11,910
235,873 437,763
(1,910) (2,792)
(40) (63)
(127) (59)
(4,619) 17,522
(428) (1,071)
(7,124) 13,537
87,374 91,191
292,642 247 442
421,915 636,574
(851,452) (894,066)
(429,537) (257,492)
(136,895) (10,049)
324,500 334,549
187,605 324,500

Heasp okl

Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed executed between Arif Habib
Investments Limited (now MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited) as Management Company and Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as Trustee. The Trust Deed was executed and was approved by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on December 14, 2005 under the Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC rules).The Fund are required to be registered
under the "Sindh Trusts Act, 2020" (the Sindh Trust Act). Accordingly, on August 13, 2021 the Trust Deed of the
fund had been registered under the Sindh Trust Act.

On April 18, 2023, MCB Bank Limited (MCB) has acquired 21,664,167 (30.09%) shares of MCB Arif Habib Savings &
Investment Limited (MCB-AH) from Arif Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL). By virtue of this transaction MCB Bank
Limited’s shareholding in MCB-AH has increased from 36,956,768 (51.33%) shares to 58,620,935 (81.42%) and
AHCL no longer holds any shares in MCB-AH. The Board of Directors of the Management Company has passed a
resolution in 188th BOD meeting held on May 2, 2023 for the change of name of the Management Company from
"MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investment Limited" to "MCB Investment Management Limited". The Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan has also given approval on the Memorandum of Association regarding the
Change of Name. The Change of Name of the Management Company has also been approved in the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting (EOGM) held on July, 07, 2023 by the Share Holders representing 89.01% Shareholding. After the
conclusion of EOGM, the Management Company has applied to the registrar for the alteration in Memorandum and
Article of Association and performing all the legal formalities incidental thereto.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under the
NBFC Rules through a certificate of registration issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Management
Company is situated at 2nd Floor, Adamjee House, |.I Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Fund is an open-ended mutual fund and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity
of the Fund is to make investment in shariah compliant investments in securities or instruments both inside and
outside Pakistan. Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable and can
be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund. The Fund has been categorised as "Shariah compliant Islamic Asset
Allocation” scheme by the Board of Directors of the Asset Management Company in accordance with the
requirements of Circular 7 of 2009 dated March 06, 2009 issued by the SECP.

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned an asset manager rating of 'AM1' dated October 06,
2022 to the Management Company.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee of
the Fund.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The transactions undertaken by the Fund are in accordance with the process prescribed under the Shariah
guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor and are accounted for on substance rather than the form prescribed by the
earlier referred guidelines. This practice is being followed to comply with the requirements of the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporling standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Such standards comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984;

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC rules), the Non-
Banking Finance Companies, Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the requirements
of Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the
IFRSS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulation and the requirements of the Trust Deed have been
followed.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

431

4.3.1.1

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain investments
which have been marked to market and carried at fair value.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are
effective in the current year:

There are certain amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that are mandatory for the
Fund's accounting period beginning on July 1, 2022. However, these do not have any significant impact on the
Fund's operations and, therefore, have not been detailed in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet
effective

There are certain standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Fund's accounting period
beginning on or after July 1, 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any significant effect on the
Fund's operations and are therefore not disclosed in these financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates, judgements and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and
future years.

The estimates and judgements that have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Fund relate to
classification, valuation and impairment of financial assets (note 4.3).

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Fund operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's
functional and presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Cash and cash equivalents

These comprise balances with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

Debt instruments

IFRS 9 has provided a criteria for debt securities whereby these debt securities are either classified as:

- amortised cost;

- at fair value through other comprehensive income “(FVOCI)”; or

- at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) based on the business model of the entity

However, IFRS 9 also provides an option whereby securities managed as a portfolio or group of assets and whose
performance is measured on a fair value basis, to be recognized at FVPL. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value
information and uses that information to assess the assets' performance and to make decisions. Therefore, the

management considers its investment in debt securities as being managed as a group of assets and hence has
classified them as FVPL.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

4.3.1.2 Equity instruments

4.3.2

4.3.21

4.3.4

4.3.5

4.3.6

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective and are
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's net
assets.

All equity investments are required to be measured in the “Statement of Assets and Liabilities” at fair value, with
gains and losses recognised in the “Income Statement”, except where an irrevocable election has been made at the
time of initial recognition to measure the investment at FVOCI. The management considers its investment in equity
securities being managed as a group of assets and hence has classified them as FVPL. Accordingly, the irrevocable
option has not been considered.

The dividend income for equity securities classified under FVPL is recognised in the Income Statement.

Since all investments in equity instruments have been designated as FVPL, the subsequent movement in the fair
value of equity securities is routed through the Income Statement.

Impairment

The Fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets
(other than debt instruments as per Circular 33 of 2012) carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The Fund recognises
a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted around that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

- the time value of money; and

- reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions.

The 12 months ECL is recorded for all financial assets in which there is no significant increase in credit risk from the
date of initial recognition, whereas a lifetime ECL is recorded for all remaining financial assets.

Impairment loss on debt securities

Provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of time-based criteria as prescribed by the SECP
and based on management's assessment made in line with its provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors
of the Management Company in accordance with the guidelines issued by the SECP. Impairment losses recognised
on debt securities can be reversed through the Income Statement.

As allowed by the SECP, the Management Company may make provision against debt securities over and above the
minimum provision requirement prescribed by the SECP, in accordance with the provisioning policy duly approved by
the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

Regular way contracts
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date on which the

Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases / sales of assets require delivery of securities
within two days from the transaction date as per the stock exchange regulations.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried 'at

fair value through profit or loss'. Financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are recognised in the Income Statement.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or

have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss
on derecognition of financial assets is taken to the Income Statement.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

4.3.7

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement each derivative
instrument is remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the Income Statement.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. These are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently stated at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial liabilities is taken to the Income Statement. Financial
liabilities include payable to the Management Company and certain other liabilities.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 'Statement of Assets and
Liabilities' when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by dividing
the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in circulation at the year end.

Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received
by the Management Company / distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the Net
Asset Value (NAV) per unit as of the close of the business day, plus the allowable sales load and provision of any
duties, charges and transaction costs, if applicable. The sales load is payable to the Management Company /
distributors.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price applicable to units for which the Management Company /
distributors receive redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price is equal to NAV
as of the close of the business day, less an amount as the Management Company may consider to be an appropriate
provision of duties, charges and transaction costs, if applicable.

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units
redeemed

Element of income represents the difference between Net Asset Value per unit on the issuance or redemption date,
as the case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period.
Further, the element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is
taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on the
accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units in
the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.

Revenue recognition

- Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in Income Statement and are recognised when the
transaction takes place.

- Unrealised appreciation / (diminution) arising on remeasurement of investments classified as financial assets 'at
fair value through profit or loss' are included in the Income Statement.

- Dividend income is recognised when the Fund's right to receive the same is established, i.e. on the date of
commencement of book closure of the investee company / institution declaring the dividend.

- Income on sukuk certificates, term deposit receipts and government securities is recognized on an accrual basis
using the effective yield method, except for the securities which are classified as Non-Performing Asset under
Circular No. 33 of 2012 issued by the SECP for which the profits are recorded on cash basis.

- Profit on saving accounts with banks is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective yield method.
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411

412

413

414

415

Expenses

All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remuneration of the Management Company and Trustee and annual
fee of the SECP are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxes after taking into account tax
credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax is calculated using the prevailing tax rates .

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit.

The deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on enacted tax rates.

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders. Provided that, for
the purpose of determining distribution of at least 90% of the accounting income, the income distributed through
bonus units shall not be taken into account.

Earnings / (loss) per unit

Earnings / (loss) per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit / loss of the year after taxation of the Fund by the
weighted average number of units outstanding during the year.

Earnings / (loss) per unit has not been disclosed as, in the opinion of the management, the determination of
cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

Distributions to unit holders

Distributions to the unit holders are recognised upon declaration and approval by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Based on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented
by the SECP, distribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the
year.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the year in which such distributions are declared and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Management Company.

Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement.
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5.1

5.2

6.1

6.1.1

Note June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
BALANCES WITHBANKS —  eeeeee- (Rupees in '000) -------
In current accounts 7,247 9,342
In deposit accounts 5.1 180,358 315,158
5.2 187,605 324,500

These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 11.05% to 20.25% per annum (2022: 6.55% to 15.51% per annum).

These include balances held with related parties of Rs. 6.877 million (2022: Rs. 9.161 million) with MCB Bank Limited
and Rs. 170.340 million (2022: Rs. 0.013 million) with MCB Islamic Bank Limited.

Note June 30, June 30,
INVESTMENTS 2023 2022
------- (Rupees in '000) -------
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity securities 6.1.1 1,113,544 1,370,513
1,113,544 1,370,513

Listed equity securities
Shares of listed companies - fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10 each unless stated otherwise

Number of shares Balance as at June 30, 2023 Market value 252 | pyig.yp ylye of
percentage of | chares held as a
f Bonus / percentage of total
Houme ofth Investee company As at July 01, :t:::iﬁ: Right issue | Sold during [As at June 30,| Carrying | Market | Unrealised| Net |:3:as|t paid-u!) capital of
2022 year during the | the year 2023 value value  (loss) /gainf assets | - the investee
year company
.............. (Rupees in '[)00) %
Automobile parts & accessories
Agriauto Industries Limited*&*** 56,400 - 14,025 70,100 325 35 20 (15)
Thal Limited*&*** 53,000 3,400 - 56,400 - - - - - -
35 20 (15 - -
Cable and electrical goods
Pak Elektron Limited 900,000 490,000 - 1,390,000 - - | - | - - -] -
Cement
Cherat Cement Company Limited 153,128 413,952 - 437,080 130,000 13,273 15,636 2363 121 140 0.01
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited** 328,265 960,000 - 588,265 700,000 | 33433| 35910 2477 279 3.22 0.02
Fauji Cement Company Limited***** 5,857,500 4,930,000 681,250 2,968,500 8,500,250 | 103,370 | 99,963 | (3/407)] 7.76| 898 0.03
Gharibwal Cement Limited 659,000 5,000 - 14,000 650,000 12,684 10,075| (2,609)] 0.78| 0.90 0.02
Kohat Cement Company Limited 229,400 191,900 - 351,300 70,000 9,158 | 12,143 2985 094 1.09 -
Lucky Cement Limited 179,000 205,500 - 237,000 147,500 65,681 77,008 11,327 | 597 6.92 -
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 1,975,000 2,847,047 - 2,922,047 1,900,000 | 47,660| 53,827 6,167 | 4.18| 4.83 0.02
Pioneer Cement Limited* 193 - - 193 - - - - - - -
285259 304,562 19,303 23.63 27.34 0.10
Chemical
Archroma Pakistan Limited 10,900 14,100 - - 25000 12512] 1,750  (762)] 0.91] 1.06] 001 ]
12,512 11,750 (762) 091 1.06 0.01
Commercial banks
Meezan Bank Limited*&***** 1,360,000 361,000 125000 1,041,000 805000 82,140 69,528 (12,612)] 539| 6.24 -
Faysal Bank Limited - 3,150,000 - 1,450,000 1,700,000 [ 45316 | 34,306 | (11,0100 2.66| 3.08 0.01
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 3,300,000 1,582,000 - 4,882,000 - - - - - - -
127,456 103,834  (23,622) 8.05 9.32 0.01
Engineering
Agha Steel Industries Limited 25 - - 25 - - -
Aisha Steel Mills Limited 700,000 650,000 - 1,350,000 - - - - - - -
Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited 385,000 279,000 - 414,000 250,000 12,535 | 12,110 (425)] 0.94] 1.09 0.01
12,535 12,110 (425 094 1.09 0.01
Balance carried forward 297,806 316,332 18,526

* Nil figures due to rounding off
** These represent transactions in shares of related parties
*** These have a face value of Rs. 5 per share
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Number of shares Balance as at June 30, 2023 Market value as a Paid-up value of
percentage of | hares held as a
i Bonus / percentage of total
Name ofthe investee company As at July 01, z:::::::: Rightissue | Sold during |AsatJune30,| Carrying | Market |Unrealised| Net i::::i_ Paid'”!’ capital of
2022 during the year 2023 value value |(loss)/ gain| assets the investee
year the year ments | company
-------------- (Rupees in '000) %
Balance brought forward 297,806 316,332 18,526
Fertilizer
Engro Fertilizer Limited 700,000 525,843 - 525,843 700,000 59,990 57,771 (2,219)| 448 5.19 0.01
Engro Corporation Limited* 293,612 307,328 - 335,940 265,000 69,345 68,871 (474)] 534| 6.18 -
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited***** 595,000 1,110,000 - 705,000 1,000,000 11,500 11,780 280 091] 1.06 0.01
140,835 138,422 (2,413) 1073 1243 0.02
Food and personal care products
National Foods Limited - 265,000 - 85,000 180,000 15,300 17,712 2412 1.37| 159 0.01
At-Tahur Limited 407,500 110,000 40,000 157,500 400,000 7,133 6,584 (549) 051 059 0.02
The Organic Meat Company Limited 1,026,600 323,500 68,406 818,500 600,006 12,240 12,468 228 | 097 1.12 0.04
34,673 36,764 2,001 285 3.30 0.07
Glass & Ceramics
Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited*&*** 435,000 115,000 - 549,561 439 6 4 @ - -
Tariq Glass Industries 151,588 - - 151,588 - - - - -
6 4 2 - - -
0Oil and gas exploration companies
Mari Petroleum Company Limited* 83,709 18,500 - 56,209 46,000 77,706 69,673 (8,033)] 541 6.26
Oil & Gas Development Company Limited* 700,000 1,574,018 - 1,524,018 750,000 60,774 58,500 (2,274)] 454 525
Pakistan Oilfields Limited* 37,000 168,450 - 150,450 55,000 22,064 22,097 33 1.71| 198
Pakistan Petroleum Limited* 826,821 1,576,863 - 1,803,684 600,000 38,609 35,484 (3,125)] 2.75| 3.19
199,153 185,754  (13,399) 14.41 16.68 -
0Oil and gas marketing companies
Attock Petroleum Limited* - 78,048 - 18,048 60,000 18,137 18,015 (122)] 1.40| 1.62
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 80,590 - - 80,590 - - - - - -
18,137 18,015 (122) 140 1.62 -
Pharmaceuticals
Ferozsons Laboratories Limited - 60,000 9,300 69,300 - - - -
AGP Limited 81,861 75,509 - 157,370 - - - - - - -
Citi Pharma Limited 700,000 307,168 - 507,168 500,000 15,121 10,670 (4,451)] 083 0.96 0.02
Haleon Pakistan Limited 104,500 60,000 - 54,500 110,000 20,530 15,415 (5,115)| 120 1.38 0.01
Highnoon Laboratories Limited 10,015 65,000 17,225 10,015 82,225 30,327 27,642 (2,685)] 214 | 2.48 0.02
65,978 53,727 (12,251) 4417 4.82 0.05
Refinery
Attock Refinery Limited 170,000 116,000 - 286,000 | | - | - - -] |
Power generation and distribution
Hub Power Company Limited 550,000 1,405,180 - 1,195180 760,000 | 49,779| 52.881[ 3,102 4.40] 475] 0.01]
49,779 52,881 3,102 410 475 0.01
Technology and communication
Air Link Communication Limited 300,000 - - 300,000 - - - -
Avanceon Limited - 185,000 - 185,000 - - - -
Octopus Digital Limited - 263,000 - 263,000 - - - - - - -
Systems Limited 95,000 194,444 - 109,444 180,000 70,021 72,599 2,578 | 563| 6.52 0.01
70,021 72,599 2,578 563 6.52 0.01
Textile composite
Interloop Limited 228,450 930,161 347,840 391,451 1,115,000 41,946 39,314 (2,632)] 3.05| 353 0.01
Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited 479,150 100,000 - 128,500 450,650 22,511 22,942 431 1.78| 206 0.02
Nishat (Chunian) Limited 1,005,000 1,086,420 - 1,541,420 550,000 11,644 11,165 (479)] 0.87| 1.00 0.02
Nishat Mills Limited** 400,000 269,399 - 450,000 219,399 12,914 12,455 (459)] 0.97| 1.12 0.01
89,015 85,876 (3,139) 6.67 7.7 0.06

Balance carried forward

* Nil figures due to rounding off

** These represent transactions in shares of related parties
*** These have a face value of Rs. 5 per share

**** These represent pledge securities
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6.1.1.1

Number of shares Balance asatJune 30,2023 | Moreet value asf 2| Paid-up value of
percentage of [ ohares held as a
. Bonus / percentage of total
Name of the investee compan: A ”
peny As at July 01, :::Ic:ai:: Right issue | Sold during |As at June 30,| Carrying Market | Unrealised | Net irT::ZIt- paid-up capital of
2022 egr during the year 2023 value value  |(loss)/ gain| assets ments the investee
y the year company
- (Rupees in '000) %
Balance brought forward 965,403 960,374 (5,029)
Paper And Board
Century Paper & Board Mills Limited* 596 153,000 80,059 35,655 198,000 4,621 5,592 971 043 0.50
Packages Limited* 40,244 - 3,000 37,244 14,854 14,485 (369)| 1.12| 1.30
19,475 20,077 602 1.55 1.80
Miscellaneous
Shifa International Hospitals 182,100 33,000 - 75,100 140,000 23,150 17,149 (6,001)] 1.33| 1.54 0.02
Synthetic Products Limited** 402 - - 402 - - - - - - -
23,150 17,149  (6,001) 1.33 1.54 0.02
Total as at June 30, 2023 1,148,019 1,113,544  (34,475)
Total as at June 30, 2022 1,573,677 1,370,513 (203,164)

* Nil figures due to rounding off

** These represent transactions in shares of related parties
*** These have a face value of Rs. 5 per share

***** These represent pledge securities

***** Following shares were pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) as collateral against margin for
guaranteeing settlement of the Fund's trades in accordance with Circular No. 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued by the SECP:

Name of security June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
--- (Number of shares) --- = —==-een (Rupees in '000) -------
Meezan Bank Limited 500,000 500,000 43,185 56,490
Fauji Cement Company Limited 2,000,000 2,000,000 23,520 28,340
2,500,000 2,500,000 66,705 84,830

The Finance Act, 2014 introduced amendments to the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 as a result of which companies
are liable to withhold five percent of the bonus shares to be issued. The shares so withheld shall only be released if
the Fund deposits tax equivalent to five percent of the value of the bonus shares issued to the Fund including bonus
shares withheld, determined on the basis of day-end price on the first day of closure of books of the issuing
company.

In this regard, a constitutional petition had been filed by Collective Investment Schemes (CISs) through their
Trustees in the High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of withholding tax provisions on bonus shares
received by CISs. The petition was based on the fact that because CISs are exempt from deduction of income tax
under Clause 99 Part | to the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, the withholding tax provision
should also not be applicable on bonus shares received by CISs. A stay order had been granted by the Honourable
High Court of Sindh in favour of CISs.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Supreme Court of Pakistan passed a judgement on June 27, 2018
whereby the suits which are already pending or shall be filed in future must only be continued / entertained on the
condition that a minimum of 50 percent of the tax calculated by the tax authorities is deposited with the authorities.
Accordingly, the CISs were required to pay minimum 50% of the tax calculated by the tax authorities for the case to
remain continued. The CISs failed to deposit the minimum 50% of the tax liability and accordingly the stay got
vacated automatically. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the CISs have filed a fresh constitutional petition via CP
4653 dated July 11, 2019. In this regard, on July 15, 2019, the Honourable High Court of Sindh has issued notices to
the relevant parties and has ordered that no third party interest on bonus shares issued to the Funds in lieu of their
investments be created in the meantime. The matter is still pending adjudication and the Funds have included these
shares in their portfolio, as the management is confident that the decision of the constitutional petition will be in
favour of the CISs.

The Finance Act, 2018, effective from July 1, 2018, has omitted Section 236M of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
requiring every company quoted on stock exchange issuing bonus shares to the shareholders of the company, to
withhold five percent of the bonus shares to be issued. Therefore, bonus shares issued to the Fund since July 1,
2018 were not withheld by the investee companies.
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8.1

9.1

As at June 30, 2023, the bonus shares of the Fund withheld by certain companies at the time of declaration of bonus
shares amounted to Rs. 0.030 million (2022: Rs. 0.057 million).

Note June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
DIVIDEND, PROFIT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES = eeeee- (Rupees in '000) ------
Dividend receivable - -
Markup receivable on deposit accounts with banks 2,915 4,519
Other receivable 112 112
3,028 4,631
ADVANCES, Prepayments AND DEPOSITS
Security deposits with:
- National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) 2,500 2,500
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) 200 200
Advance tax 8.1 1,206 1,205
3,906 3,905

As per clause 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, payments made to
collective investment schemes (CISs) are exempt from withholding tax under section 151 and 150. However,
withholding tax on dividend and profit on debt paid to the Fund has been deducted by various withholding agents
based on the interpretation issued by FBR vide letter C. no. 1(43) DG (WHT)/2008-VOL.11-66417-R dated 12 May
2015 which requires every withholding agent to withhold income tax at applicable rates in case a valid exemption
certificate under section 159(1) issued by the concerned Commissioner of Inland Revenue (CIR) is not produced
before him by the withholdee. The tax withheld on dividends and profit on debt amounts to Rs 1.206 million (2022: Rs
1.205 million).

For this purpose, the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on behalf of various mutual funds (including the
Funds being managed by the Management Company) had filed a petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC)
challenging the above mentioned interpretation of the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) which was decided by the
SHC in favour of FBR. On January 28, 2016, the Board of Directors of the Management Company passed a
resolution by circulation, authorising all CISs to file an appeal in the Honourable Supreme Court through their
Trustees, to direct all persons being withholding agents, including share registrars and banks to observe the
provisions of clause 47B of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 without imposing any
conditions at the time of making any payment to the CISs being managed by the Management Company.
Accordingly, a petition was filed in the Supreme Court of Pakistan by the Funds together with other CISs (managed
by the Management Company and other Asset Management Companies) whereby the Supreme Court granted the
petitioners leave to appeal from the initial judgement of SHC. Pending resolution of the matter, the amount of
withholding tax deducted on profit received by the Fund on dividends and profit on debt has been shown as advance
tax under 'Advances and deposits' as at June 30, 2023 as, in the opinion of the management, the amount of tax
deducted at source will be refunded.

Note June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
PAYABLE TO MCB-ARIF HABIB SAVINGS AND INVESTMENT  ~ —meem- (Rupees in '000) ------
LIMITED - MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Management fee payable 9.1 3,545 4,680
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration of the Management
Company 9.2 461 609
Allocated expenses payable 9.3 107 141
Sales load payable - 76
Back end load payable - 507
Shariah advisory fee payable 50 60
4,163 6,073

As per regulation 61 of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Management Company is entitled to a remuneration equal
to an amount not exceeding the maximum rate of the management fee as disclosed in the Offering Document subject
to the total expense ratio limit. Keeping in view the maximum allowable limit, the Management Company has charged
its remuneration at the rate of 3.3% per annum (2022: 3.3% per annum) of the average daily net assets of the Fund
during the year. The remuneration is payable to the Management Company monthly in arrears.
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During the year, an amount of Rs. 6.486 million (2022: Rs. 9.199 million) was charged on account of sales tax on
management fee levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 and an amount of Rs 6.634 million (2022:
Rs. 9.440 million) has been paid to the Management Company which acts as a collecting agent.

In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitled to charge fees and
expenses related to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services, related to a Collective
Investment Scheme (CIS).

The Management Company has allocated expenses to the Fund based on its discretion subject to not being higher
than actual expense, which has also been approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

The SECP has allowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and marketing expenses to all
categories of open-end mutual funds (except fund of funds) upto a maximum limit approved by the Board of Directors
of the Management Company as part of annual plan.

The Management Company has not charged selling and marketing expenses to the Fund based on its discretion,
which has also been approved by the BOD of the Management Company.

Note June 30, June 30,
PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY 2023 2022
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED-TRUSTEE @~ = =eeee- (Rupees in '000) ------
Trustee fee payable 10.1 190 224
Sindh Sales Tax payable on trustee fee 10.2 23 29
213 253

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed and Offering Document as per the tariff specified therein, based on the average daily net assets of the Fund
during the year. The tariff structure applicable to the Fund in respect of trustee fee is as follows :

Average net asset value Tariff per annum
Up to Rs.1,000 million 0.20% per annum of net assets
Amount exceeding Rs.1,000 million Rs.2.0 million plus 0.10% p.a. of net assets exceeding Rs.1 billion

During the year, an amount of Rs. 0.325 million (2022: Rs 0.409 million) was charged on account of sales tax on
remuneration of the Trustee levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 and an amount of Rs. 0.331
million (2022: Rs. 0.416 million) was paid to the Trustee which acts as a collecting agent.

Note June 30, June 30,
PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 2023 2022
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN (Rupees in '000)
Annual fee 11.1 302 429

In accordance with the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) is required to pay annual fee to the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

In accordance with the SRO No. 685(1)/2019 dated June 28, 2019 issued by SECP, the Fund has charged SECP fee
at the rate of 0.02% (2022: 0.02%) of the average daily net assets of the Fund during the year.

Note June 30, June 30,
2023 2022

ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES e (Rupees in '000) ------
Provision for Federal Excise Duty payable on remuneration of

the Management Company 12.1 5,910 5,910

Federal Excise Duty payable on sales load 1,136 1,136

Charity / donation payable 3,170 2,940

Auditors' remuneration payable 530 303

Withholding tax payable 4 4

Brokerage payable 302 762

Other payables 666 1,091

11,718 12,146
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The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset
Management Companies (AMCs) as a result of which FED at the rate of 16 percent on the remuneration of the
Management Company and sales load was applicable with effect from June 13, 2013. The Management Company
was of the view that since the remuneration was already subject to provincial sales tax, further levy of FED would
result in double taxation which did not appear to be the spirit of the law. Hence, on September 4, 2013 a
constitutional petition was filed with the Sindh High Court (SHC) by the Management Company together with various
other asset management companies challenging the levy of FED.

With effect from July 1, 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by non-banking financial institutions dealing in
services which are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the SHC passed an order whereby all notices, proceedings taken or pending,
orders made, duty recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the rendering or
providing of services (to the extent as challenged in any relevant petition) were set aside. In response to this, the
Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed a Civil Petition for leave to appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan
which is pending adjudication.

In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED on remuneration of the
Management Company with effect from July 01, 2016. However, as a matter of abundant caution the provision for
FED made for the period from June 13, 2013 till June 30, 2016 amounting to Rs 7.04 million is being retained in
these financial statements of the Fund as the matter is pending before the Supreme Court of Pakistan. Had the
provision for FED not been made, the Net Asset Value of the Fund as at June 30, 2023 would have been higher by
Re. 0.36 (2022: Re. 0.27) per unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022

June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
AUDITORS' REMUNERATION  emeeen (Rupees in '000) ------
Annual audit fee 290 250
Half yearly review fee 151 131
Other certification and services 318 50
Out of pocket expenses and other taxes 118 70
877 501

TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year,
as reduced by capital gains, whether realized or unrealized, is distributed to the unit holders as cash dividend.
Furthermore, regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulations requires the Fund to distribute 90% of the net accounting
income other than capital gains to the unit holders. The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113
(minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Fund
has not recorded any tax liability in respect of income relating to the current year as the Management Company has
distributed cash dividend subsequent to the year end (refer note 27) that is at least 90 percent of the Fund's
accounting income for the year ended June 30, 2023 as reduced by capital gains (whether realized or unrealized) to
its unit holders in the form of cash.

Note June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rupees in '000)
Balances with banks 5 187,605 324,500
187,605 324,500

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Total Expense Ratio (TER) of the Fund as at June 30, 2023 is 4.78% (2022: 4.69%) which includes 0.51%
(2022: 0.47%) representing government levies on the Fund such as sales taxes, annual fee to the SECP, etc. The
prescribed limit for the ratio is 4.5% (2022: 4.5%) (excluding government levies) under the NBFC Regulations for a
collective investment scheme categorised as a "Shariah compliant Islamic Asset Allocation" scheme.
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18.1

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES OUTSTANDING WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / OTHER RELATED PARTIES

Related parties / connected persons of the Fund include the Management Company, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, MCB Bank Limited being the Holding Company of the
Management Company, the Trustee, directors, key management personnel and other associated undertakings and
connected persons. Connected persons also include any person beneficially owing directly or indirectly 10% or more
of the units in the issue / net assets of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee on account of managing
the affairs of the Fund, other charges, sale and purchase of investments and distribution payments to connected
persons. The transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and at
terms determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the
provisions of the NBFC Regulations and constitutive documents of the Fund respectively.

Details of transactions and balances at year end with related parties / connected persons, other than those which
have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

Transactions during the year:

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited - Management Company

For the year

For the year

ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2023 2022

------ (Rupees in '000) ------

Remuneration (including indirect taxes) 56,382 79,961
Allocated expenses 1,512 2,144
Shariah advisory fee 710 720

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

For the year

For the year

ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2023 2022

------ (Rupees in '000) ------

Remuneration (including indirect taxes) 2,837 3,553
Central Depository Service (CDS) settlement charges 112 238
Group / Associated Companies

MCB Bank Limited

Bank charges 11 21
MCB Islamic Bank Limited

Profit on bank deposits 1,924 1
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited

Purchase of shares 960,000 (June 30,2022: 889,218) shares 48,849 68,135
Sale of shares 588,265 (June 30, 2022: 915,953) shares 31,907 67,266
Dividend income 380 250
Nishat Mills Limited

Purchase of 269,399 (June 30, 2022: 715,186) shares 16,389 57,524
Sale of 450,000 (June 30, 2022: 315,186) shares 31,443 24,093

The amount disclosed represents the amount of brokerage paid / payable to connected persons and not the
purchase or sale value of securities transacted through them. The purchase or sale value has not been treated as
transactions with connected persons as the ultimate counter-parties are not connected persons.
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June 30, June 30,
18.2 Balances outstanding at year end: 2023 2022
------ (Rupees in '000) ------
MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited - Management Company

Management remuneration payable 3,545 4,680
Sindh sales tax payable on remuneration of the management company 461 609
Allocated expenses payable 107 141
Sales load payable - 68
Sales tax payable on sales load - 9
Back end load payable - 507
Shariah advisory fee payable 50 60
June 30, June 30,
2023 2022

------ (Rupees in '000) ------
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee remuneration payable 190 224
Sindh sales tax payable on trustee remuneration 23 29
Security deposit 200 200

MCB Bank Limited
Balances with bank 6,877 9,161

MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Balances with bank 170,340 13

Nishat Mills Limited
219,399 (2022: 400,000) shares held 12,455 29,564

D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited
700,000 (2022: 328,265) shares held 35,910 20,517

* The amount disclosed represents the amount of brokerage paid / payable to connected persons and not the purchase or sale value
of securities transacted through them. The purchase or sale value has not been treated as transactions with connected persons as
the ultimate counter-parties are not connected persons.

18.3 Transactions during the year with connected persons / related parties in units of the Fund:

June 30, 2023

As at Issued Redeemed As at June 30,| | As at July Issued Redeemed As at June
July 01, 2022 for cash 2023 01, 2022 for cash 30, 2023
Units mememzanmeannene (RUPEES i '000) =oemmmmsenmmnennnes

Group / associated companies
D.G Khan Cement Company Limited -

Employees' Provident Fund Trust 112,524 - - 112,524 7,246 - - 7,349
Adamijee Life Assurance Company

Limited - Investment Multiplier Fund 580,377 1,562,083 - 2,142,460 37,372 100,000 - 139,929
Adamijee Life Assurance Company

Limited - Amaanat Fund 463,331 850,929 46,832 1,267,428 29,835 52,591 3,000 82,779
Adamijee Life Assurance Company

Limited - Mazaaf 1,932,537 1,952,603 304,490 3,580,650 124,441 125,000 20,000 233,860
Hyundai Nishat Motor Private Limited

Employees Provident Fund 167,136 113,653 57,046 223,743 10,762 7,150 3,700 14,613
Key management personnel * 17,324 480 1,064 16,740 1,116 31 69 1,093
Mandate under discretionary

portfolio services* 909,522 1,301,235 937,451 1,273,306 58,567 83,430 60,931 83,163

* This reflects the position of related party / connected person status as at June 30, 2023.
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June 30, 2022
Issued Issued
As at As at June 30,|| As at July As at June
July 01, 2021 for cash / Redeemed 2022 01, 2021 forcash/ |Redeemed 30, 2022
Bonus Bonus
Units memememmemeneemene- (RUPEES N "000) -=mmememmememeneeme
Group / associated companies
D.G Khan Cement Company Limited -
Employees' Provident Fund Trust 112,524 - - 112,524 8,752 - - 7,246
Adamijee Life Assurance Company
Limited - Investment Multiplier Fund 580,377 - - 580,377 45,144 - - 37,372
Adamijee Life Assurance Company
Limited - Amaanat Fund 290,429 275,872 102,970 463,331 22,590 20,000 7,500 29,835
Adamijee Life Assurance Company
Limited - Mazaaf 1,932,536 - - 1,932,536 150,319 - - 124,441
Hyundai Nishat Motor Private Limited
Employees Provident Fund - 170,175 3,039 167,136 - 11,700 200 10,762
Key management personnel * 19,469 18,442 20,587 17,324 1,514 1,381 1,444 1,116
Mandate under discretionary
portfolio services* 421,012 691,851 370,477 742,386 32,748 49,880 25,486 47,804
* This reflects the position of related party / connected person status as at June 30, 2022.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
-------------------- June 30, 2023 ----------==-=emm-u-o-
At At fair value
amortised through Total
cost profit or loss
----------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------
Financial assets
Balances with banks 187,605 - 187,605
Investments - 1,113,544 1,113,544
Dividend, mark-up and other receivables 3,028 - 3,028
Receivable against sale of investments 10,168 - 10,168
Deposits 2,700 - 2,700
203,501 1,113,544 1,317,045
Financial liabilities
Payable to the MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited - Management Company 4,163 - 4,163
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 213 - 213
Payable against purchase of investments 12,903 - 12,903
Accrued and other liabilities 4,667 - 4,667
21,946 - 21,946
B R e ———
At At fair value
amortised through Total
cost profit or loss
----------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------
Financial assets
Balances with banks 324,500 - 324,500
Investments - 1,370,513 1,370,513
Dividend, mark-up and other receivables 4,631 - 4,631
Receivable against sale of investments 21,945 - 21,945
Deposits 2,700 - 2,700
353,776 1,370,513 1,724,289
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20.1

-------------------- June 30, 2022 ---=========mmmmnmann
At At fair value
amortised through Total
cost profit or loss

----------------- (Rupees in '000) ------==-===--=

Financial liabilities
Payable to the MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments

Limited - Management Company 6,073 - 6,073

Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 253 - 253
Payable against purchase of investments 17,522 - 17,522
Accrued and other liabilities 5,069 - 5,069
28,917 - 28,917

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holders’ value. Risk is inherent in the
Fund’s activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up to be
performed based on limits established by the Management Company, the constitutive documents of the Fund and
the regulations and directives of the SECP. These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the
Fund as well as the level of the risk that the Fund is willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the Management
Company supervises the overall risk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed to market risk,
liquidity risk and credit risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages the market risk through diversification of the investment portfolio and by
following the internal guidelines established by the Investment Committee.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, profit rate risk and other price risk.
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of

changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign currencies and
hence is not exposed to such risk.

(ii) Yield / Profit rate risk

Yield / profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market profit rates. As of June 30, 2023, the Fund is exposed to such risk on its balances held
with banks and sukuk certificates. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a
regular basis to ensure that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

a) Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2023, the Fund is exposed to cash flow profit rate risk on bank deposits. In case of 100 basis points
increase / decrease as on June 30, 2023, with all other variables held constant, the net assets value of the Fund and
the net income for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs 1.804 million (2022: Rs 3.152 million).

b) Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments

As at June 30, 2023, the Fund does not hold any financial instrument exposing the Fund to fair value interest rate
risk.

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio, KIBOR rates and rates announced by the Financial Markets

Association of Pakistan are expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June
30, 2023 is not necessarily indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of future movements in interest rates.
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The Fund's profit rate sensitivity related to financial assets and financial liabilities as at June 30, 2023 can be
determined as follows:

June 30, 2023
Exposed to profit rate risk

Not exposed
Profit rate (%) Up to three More than three More than to profit rate Total
months and upto .
months one year risk
one year

--- (Rupees in '000) ----

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets

Balances with banks 11.05% to 20.25% 180,358 - - 7,247 187,605
Listed equity securities - - - 1,113,544 1,113,544
Dividend, markup and other receivables - - - 3,028 3,028
Receivable against sale of investments - - - 10,168 10,168
Deposits - - - 2,700 2,700

180,358 - - 1,136,687 1,317,045

Financial liabilities
Payable to the MCB-Arif Habib Savings and

Investments Limited - Management Company - - - 4,163 4,163
Payable to Central Depository Company

of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 213 213

Payable against purchase of investments - - - 12,903 12,903

Accrued and other liabilities - - - 4,667 4,667

- - - 21,946 21,946

On-balance sheet gap (a) 180,358 - - 1,114,741 1,295,099

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - -

Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - - - -

Total profit rate sensitivity gap (a+b) 180,358 - -

Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 180,358 180,358 180,358

June 30, 2022
Exposed to profit rate risk

Not exposed
Profit rate (%) Up to three More than three More than to profit rate Total
months and upto .
months one year risk
one year

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets

Balances with banks 6.55% to 15.51% 315,158 - - 9,342 324,500
Listed equity securities - - - 1,370,513 1,370,513
Dividend, markup and other receivables - - - 4,631 4,631
Receivable against sale of investments - - - 21,945 21,945
Deposits - - - 2,700 2,700

315,158 - - 1,409,131 1,724,289

Financial liabilities
Payable to the MCB-Arif Habib Savings and

Investments Limited - Management Company - - - 6,073 6,073
Payable to Central Depository Company

of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 253 253

Payable against purchase of investments 17,522 17,522

Accrued and other liabilities - - - 5,069 5,069

- - - 28,917 28,917

On-balance sheet gap (a) 315,158 - - 1,380,214 1,695,372

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - -

Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - - - -

Total profit rate sensitivity gap (a+b) 315,158

Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 315.158 315,158 315.158
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20.2

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.

The Fund has exposure to equity price risk arising from its investments in equity securities. The Fund manages its
price risk arising from investment in the equity securities by diversifying its portfolio within the eligible limits
prescribed in the Fund’s constitutive documents, the NBFC Regulations and circulars issued by SECP from time to
time. The Fund’s equity investments and their fair values exposed to price risk as at the year end are concentrated in
the sectors given in note 6.1.1.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit for the year and the unit holders' fund to an increase or
decrease of 5% in the fair values of the Fund’s equity securities. This level of change is considered to be reasonably
possible based on observation of current market conditions. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Fund's equity
securities at each statement of assets and liabilities date, with all other variables held constant.

Effect due to increase / decrease in KSE 100 index
Investments

Income statement

June 30,
2023

June 30,
2022

----- (Rupees '000) -----

55,677

68,526

55,677

68,526

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by failing to
discharge its obligation as it falls due. The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk:

2023 2022
Balance as per . Balance as per .
Maximum Maximum
statement of statement of
exposure to exposure to
assets and . assets and .
[ credit risk o credit risk
liabilities liabilities
---------------- Rupees in '000----------------
Balances with banks 187,605 187,605 324,500 324,500
Investments in equity and government securities 1,113,544 - 1,370,513 -
Dividend, markup and other receivables 3,028 3,028 4,631 4,631
Deposits 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700
Receivable against sale of investments 10,168 10,168 21,945 21,945
1,317,045 203,501 1,724,289 353,776

Difference in the balance as per statement of asset and liabilities and maximum exposure is due to the fact that
investments in equity securities and government securities of Rs.1,113.547 million (2022: Rs. 1,370.513 million) and
profit receivable from government securities of Rs: Nil (2022: Rs. Nil million) is not exposed to credit risk.

Details of credit rating of balances with banks as at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022
Bank balances by rating category e L7/ ——
AAA 1.97 89.76
AA+ 50.02 0.01
AA 2.59 0.13
AA- 0.02 -
A 45.40 -
A+ - 10.10
100 100

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund’s total credit exposure. The
Fund’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-
worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.
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20.3

21

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligation in
full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to daily settlement of equity securities and daily redemptions at the option of unit holders. The
Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions. The Fund's policy is, therefore, to
invest the majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed of and
are considered readily realisable.

As per the NBFC Regulations, the Fund can borrow in the short-term to ensure settlement the maximum limit of
which is fifteen percent of the net assets upto 90 days and would be secured by the assets of the Fund.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the ability to withhold daily redemption requests in
excess of ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for
being processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption
requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units in issue. The Fund did not withhold any redemptions
during the year.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The maturity profile of the Fund's liabilities based on contractual maturities is given below:

June 30, 2023
More than | More than More than Financial
. one month three .
Within 1 one year |More than 5| instruments
and upto | months and . ! Total
month and upto years with no fixed
three upto one ) .
five years maturity
months year
Rupees in '000 ---
Financial liabilities
Payable to the MCB-Arif Habib Savings
and Investments Limited 4,163 - - - - - 4,163
Payable to Central Depository
Company of Pakistan - Trustee 213 - - - - - 213
Payable against purchase of investments 12,903 - - - - - 12,903
Accrued and other liabilities 4,667 - - - - - 4,667
21,946 - - - - - 21,946
June 30, 2022
More than | More than More than Financial
o one month three .
Within 1 one year |More than 5| instruments
and upto |months and . ! Total
month and upto years with no fixed
three upto one ) .
five years maturity
months year
Rupees in '000 ---
Financial liabilities
Payable to the MCB-Arif Habib Savings
and Investments Limited 6,073 - - - - - 6,073
Payable to Central Depository
Company of Pakistan - Trustee 253 - - - - - 253
Payable against purchase of investments 17,522 - - - - - 17,5622
Accrued and other liabilities 5,069 - - - - - 5,069
28,917 - - - - - 28,917

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values
and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.
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Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement
of assets and liabilities date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not to
be significantly different from the respective book values.

Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Fund to classify assets using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2023, the Fund held the following financial instruments measured at fair values:

June 30, 2023
Level1 || Level2 []| Level3 || Total
(Rupees in '000)

Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss'
Listed equity securities 1,113,544 - - 1,113,544
1,113,544 - - 1,113,544

June 30, 2022

Level1 [| Level2 J] Level3 ] Total

(Rupees in '000)

Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss’

Listed equity securities 1,370,513 - - 1,370,513
1,370,513 - - 1,370,513

unit holders' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by redeemable units. These units are entitled to dividends and to payment of
their proportionate share of the Fund's Net Asset Value per unit on the redemption date. The relevant movements are
shown on the 'Statement of Movement in unit holders' Fund'.

The Fund has no restriction on the subscription and redemption of units. As required under the NBFC Regulations,
every open end scheme shall maintain fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs 100 million at all times during the
life of the scheme. The Fund has historically maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size at
all times.

The Fund's objectives when managing unit holders' funds are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can continue to provide returns to the unit holders and to maintain a strong base of assets to meet
unexpected losses or opportunities.

In accordance with the risk management policies as stated in note 20, the Fund endeavours to invest the
subscriptions received in appropriate investment avenues while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions,

such liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments or short-term borrowings, where necessary.

PATTERN OF UNITHOLDING

Details of pattern of unitholding June 30, 2023
Number of Number of Investment Percentage
unit holders units held amount investment
(Rupees in '000) %

Individual 2,100 10,449,495 682,480 52.95%
Retirement Fund 17 1,957,689 127,861 9.92%
Associated Company 5 7,326,804 478,530 37.13%
Others 3 1,226 80 0.01%
2,125 19,735,214 1,288,952 100%
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June 30, 2022

Number of Number of Investment Percentage
unit holders units held amount investment
(Rupees in '000) %
Individuals 2,279 17,395,416 1,120,138 66.32%
Retirement funds 28 5,579,204 359,260 21.27%
Associated companies 5 3,255,904 209,656 12.40%
Others 1 260 17 0.00%
2,313 26,230,784 1,689,071 100%

TOP TEN BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID
Details of commission paid by the fund to top ten brokers by percentage during the year are as follows:

June 30, 2023

(Percentage)
1 Alfalah CLSA Securities (Private) Limited 5.51%
2 Intermarket Securities Limited 5.46%
3 Optimus Capital Management (Private) Limited 5.12%
4 Topline Securities Limited 5.04%
5 BMA Capital Management Limited 5.02%
6 AKIK Capital (Private) Limited 5.01%
7 Khadim Ali Shah Bukhari Securities Limited 4.81%
8 Foundation Securities Limited 4.68%
9 DJM Securities (Private) Limited 4.59%
10 Ismail Igbal Securities (Private) Limited 4.40%

June 30, 2022

(Percentage)
1 Arif Habib Limited 6.91%
2 Topline Securities Limited 6.66%
3 Intermarket Securities Limited 6.60%
4 EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited 5.07%
5 DJM Securities (Private) Limited 4.88%
6 Alfalah CLSA Securities (Private) Limited 4.66%
7 AKD Securities Limited 4.62%
8 Next Capital Limited 4.56%
9 Al Habib Capital Markets (Private) Limited 4.16%
10 Khadim Ali Shah Bukhari Securities Limited 3.97%

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The 177th, 178th, 179th, 180th, 181st, 182nd, 183rd, 184th, 185th, 186th, 187th & 188th meeting of the Board of
Directors were held on July 08, 2022, August 02, 2022, August 15, 2022, Septemer 01, 2022, October 18, 2022,
October 21, 2022, January 31, 2023 , February 03, 2023, March 22, 2023, April 11, 2023, April 14, 2023 and May 02,
2023 respectively. Information in respect of attendance by the directors and other persons in the meetings is given
below:

j Number of Number of meetings i
Name of persons attending the . . R d Meetings Not
. Designation meetings || Attendanc Leave
meetings . Attended Attended
held e required granted
Mr. Haroon Rashid Chairman 12 12 12 - -
Mr. Nasim Beg (Resigned on May 2nd, Vice Chairman 12 12 12 _ _
2023)
Mr. Muhammad Saqib Saleem Chief Executive Officer 12 12 12 - -
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Director 12 12 12 - -
Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg (Resigned on .
May 2nd, 2023) Director 12 12 12
Mr. Kashif A. Habib (Resigned on May .
2nd, 2023) Director 12 12 8 4 180, 184, 186 & 187
Syed Savail Meekal Hussain Director 12 12 10 2 185 & 187
Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Director 12 12 9 3 178, 181 & 182
Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy (Appointed on .
May 2nd, 2023) Director 12 1 1
Mr. Manzar Mushtaq (Appointed on .
May 2nd, 2023) Director 12 1 1
Mr. Shoaib Mumtaz (Appointed on May Director 12 1 1 _ _

2nd, 2023)
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26 PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Details of members of Investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:

S: || Name || Designation || Qualification E).(perlence
No. in years

1 Muhammad Sagib Saleem Chief Executive Officer FCCA, FCA 25.5

2 Muhammad Asim Chief Investment Officer MBA, CFA 20

3 Awais Abdul Sattar Portfolio Manager Equities MBA, CFA 12

4 Jawad Naeem Head of Islamic Equity MBA Finance & CFA Level 1 15

5 Saad Ahmed Head Of Fixed Income MBA 17

6 Syed Abid Al Head Of Equities MBA 15

7 Syed Mohammad Usama Igbal Fund Manager Graduate 19

Mr. Jawad Naeem is the Manager of the Fund as at year end. Other funds being managed by him are as follows:

- Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund; and
- Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund

27 NON ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Fund has distributed cash dividend of Rs. 1.4341 per unit on July 01, 2023, for the year ended June 30, 2023.
The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2023 do not include the effect of this distribution
which will be accounted for in the financial statements of the Fund for the year ending June 30, 2024.

28 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on July 26,2023 by the Board of Directors of
the Management Company.

29 GENERAL

29.1  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise specified.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)

-

ot A Mol

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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No. of Unit Holders Unit holdings Total units held
905 A.001-10,000 30,486

809( B.10,001-100,000 488,215

303| C. 100,001 -1000,000 1,685,909

108| D. 1000,001 & Above 17,530,605

2,125 19,735,214
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PERFORMANCE TABLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Performance Information 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Total Net Assets Value — Rs. in million 1288.9518 1,689.0710 2,334.8880 1,963.5787 2,973.0870
Net Assets value per unit — Rupees 65.3123 64.3927 77.7831 62.5192 63.8246
Closing Offer Price 67.5264 66.5756 80.4199 64.6386 65.9883
Closing Repurchase Price 63.0982 62.2098 75.1463 62.5192 63.8246
Highest offer price per unit 69.8956 83.0021 83.0920 80.4091 74.6502
Lowest offer price per unit 61.2710 65.5420 65.6646 52.0342 63.6464
Highest Redemption price per unit 67.6038 80.2806 80.3675 71.7726 72.2025
Lowest Redemption price per unit 59.2620 63.3930 63.5116 50.3281 61.5595
Distribution per unit — Rs. * - - - 0.8205 -
Average Annual Return - %

One year 1.43 -17.22 24.41 -0.76 -8.89
Two year -7.90 3.60 11.83 -4.83 -6.48
Three year 2.87 2.14 4.92 -4.57 4.93
Net Income for the year — Rs. in million 29.4184 (388.3256) 527.1950 (20.355) (315.449)
Distribution made during the year — Rs. in million - - - 25.7112 -
Accumulated Capital Growth — Rs. in million 29.4184 (388.3256) 527.1950 (45.856) (315.449)
* Date of Distribution
2023
Date [ Rate
NIL
2022
Date [ Rate
NIL
2021
Date | Rate
NIL
2020
Date | Rate
June 29, 2020 0.8205
2019
Date | Rate
NIL

Disclaimer

The past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investments and returns may go down, as

well as up.
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PROXY ISSUED BY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

The Board of Directors of MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited (the Management
Company of Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund — ALHAA) has an overall responsibility for
the implementation of Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures which is available on the Management
Company’s website (www.mcbfunds.com).

During the financial year ended June 30, 2023, the Management Company on behalf of ALHAA
participated in six (6) shareholders' meetings. The Management Company did not participate in
shareholders’ meetings in the cases which did not meet the criteria reported in Paragraph No. 8
and 9 of the Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures. Summary of actual proxies voted during the
financial year are as follows:

Resolutions For | Against | Abstain Reaso.n .for

Abstaining
Number 20 18 2 0 -
(%ages) 100 90 10 0 -

Detailed information regarding actual proxies voted by the Management Company on behalf of
ALHAA will be provided without any charges on request of the Unit Holders.
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MCB INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(Formerly: MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited)
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